
I. CALL TO ORDER 

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT AGENCY 
JOINT POWERS BOARD MEETING 

Legal Conference Room 
Santa Fe County Courthouse 

August 15, 2013 

A meeting of the City and County of Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency Joint Powers 
Board (SWMA) was called to order by Councilor Peter N. lves, Chair, on Thursday, August 15, 2013, at 
approximately 12:00 noon, in the County Commission Chambers, Santa Fe County Courthouse, 102 Grant 
Avenue, Santa Fe, New Mexico. 

II. 

COUNTY OF SANTA FE ) SOLID LIASTE MINUTI 
STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) PAGES: 20 ss 

STAFF PRESENT: :e~erdebOy Certify That This Instrument Was Filed fo 
or n The 23RD 0 Of S r 

Randall Kippenbrock, Executive Director- SWMA And (.las Duly Record :y I eptember' 2013 at 03:14:21 

A I. S I SWMA Of e as nstrument t! 1718772 nge ICa a azar, The Records Of Santa Fe County 

Justin Miller, Legal Counsel ~ 
Melessia Helberg, Stenographer .r, ~ 1111 ~ 

Deput ~ 
- -- ----------~ 

There was a quorum of the membership in attendance .. 

Ill. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

MOTION: Commissioner moved, seconded by Commissioner Mayfield, to approve the Agenda as 
presented. 

VOTE: The motion was approved unanimously on a voice vote. 



IV. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING- JULY 18, 2013 

Mr. Kippenbrock noted on page 1 that Item VI (C) was heard first and not Item VI(A) and VIA(1 ), 
noting he has requested that Ms. Heiberg do the appropriate cut and paste of the minutes and that 
corrected minutes be provided. 

MOTION: Councilor Rivera moved, seconded by Commissioner Mayfield, to approve the minutes of the 
regular meeting of July 18, 2013, as amended 

VOTE: The motion was approved on a voice vote, with Councilor Dimas, Councilor Rivera, Commissioner 
Mayfield and Chair lves voting in favor of the motion, no one voting against, and Commissioners Holian 
and Commissioner Chavez abstaining. 

V. MATTERS FROM THE PUBLIC 

None. 

VI. MATTERS FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

(A) DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE ACTION ON THE CAJA DEL RIO LANDFILL 
ACCEPTING OUT-OF-COUNTY WASTE GENERATED FROM THE GEOGRAPHIC 
AREAS OF SAN MIGUEL COUNTY, RIO ARRIBA COUNTY AND LOS ALAMOS 
COUNTY. 

Mr. Kippenbrock presented information regarding this matter from his Memorandum of August 12, 
2013, with attachments, to the SFSWMA Joint Powers Board, which is incorporated herewith to these 
minutes as Exhibit "1." Please see Exhibit "1" for specifics of this presentation. 

Chair lves welcomed those in attendance. 

Los Alamos County 

Mr. Kippenbrock introduced Philo S. Shelton, Public Works Director, Tom Nagawiecki, 
Administrative Services and Leroy Chaco, Landfill Superintendent, all of Los Alamos County. 

Mr. Shelton said the reason they aren't bringing waste into Santa Fe is that they want more 
competitive rates. 

Mr. Shelton said currently their waste goes to Los Lunas or Rio Rancho, and their total cost is $43 
to $45 per ton depending on where it goes. If they send it to Santa Fe, it costs $14 per ton for hauling, and 
tipping fee of $30 to $31 per ton, noting the hauling costs would increase if the cost of diesel fuel 
increases. He said they ship their recycling to Albuquerque. It said it is harder for Santa Fe to be 

Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency Joint Powers Board Meeting: August 15, 2013 Page2 



competitive, because the others offer revenue per ton at $20 per ton. The economics are further apart. 

Mr. Shelton said they haul about 20,000 tons annually to the landfill. 

Chair lves asked if that includes recycling. 

Mr. Shelton said, no, that is separate. 

Responding to the Chair, Mr. Shelton said they have a long term contract to haul the waste with 
Salazar Trucking, noting the diesel fuel is a cost factor. He said the cost to haul per ton is $39.50, versus 
$27 to haul to Santa Fe. He said Los Alamos looking at a batch load. He said they ship and handle baled 
materials. He said the BuRRT doesn't accept baled mixed recyclables. 

Commissioner Chavez asked if their source accepts separated streams of cardboard. He said he 
imagines that is based on the customer base. 

Mr. Shelton said their residential recycling is at about 24%, commenting there is room for growth. 
He said Albuquerque accepts more kinds of recyclables than BuRRT. 

Commissioner Chavez asked if commercial and businesses are involved. 

Mr. Shelton said something which was inaudible about the recycling rate versus diversion rate, 
noting their recycling rate is about 20%. He said the diversion rate would include things like recycled 
metal. He said they recycle a lot of other things like concrete, which gets up to about 70%. 

Commissioner Chavez said these are significant numbers. He thinks those are a part of the 
equations as well. He said if we focus regionally, then perhaps we might capture more and keep it within 
the region. 

Chair lves said SWMA, the City and the County are engaged in a Solid Waste Assessment Study, 
and he would like to look at this in terms of the overall structure. 

Mr. Shelton said he would be glad to share information in this regard with the SWMA consultant. 
He said they are maximizing the rate of recycling, commenting the new com posting will help a lot. 

Chair lves asked Mr. Shelton if the waste they accept includes any waste from LANL. 

Mr. Shelton said yes, but only non-hazardous waste, noting there are many projects where LANL 
is demolishing old buildings. 

Commissioner Mayfield thanked them for coming today. He asked about the tipping fees. 

Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency Joint Powers Board Meeting: August 15, 2013 Page3 



Mr. Shelton said the tipping fees to Los Lunas are $15.96, and to Rio Rancho it is $25.11, noting it 
is $40 for Santa Fe. 

Commissioner Mayfield asked what kinds of things are not accepted. 

Mr. Shelton said they do not accept wastewater sludge. 

Responding to Commissioner Mayfield, Mr. Shelton said this will stop once the composting facility 
is up and running, and then they will accept the wastewater sludge which will go to the composting facility. 

Commissioner Mayfield asked if all waste would be compatible with what Santa Fe accepts, and 
Mr. Shelton said yes, generally. 

Commissioner Mayfield said they need to consider the environmental impacts of the use of diesel 
in trucking waste to Albuquerque. 

Commissioner Mayfield asked about repurposing materials from the lab. 

Mr. Shelton said they have a radiation monitor, and if radiation is detected, usually it is due to 
people getting radioactive treatment. 

Commissioner Mayfield asked about asbestos. 

Mr. Shelton said that is handled separately. 

Mr. Nagawiecki said all waste that comes from LANL comes with a LANL pass which is done by 
LANL internally and is accepted by Los Alamos. He said they don't accept asbestos. 

Mr. Kippenbrock asked if they accept C & D, and if so, do they take it to the transfer station or to 
the landfill. 

Mr. Shelton said the newest which are the bio wastes go into the com posting. 

Mr. Shelton said, with regard to the tipping rates at $60 per ton, they reviewed all costs, and the 
cost is $45 per ton to the facility. The additional $15 is to cover the cost of the staff at the scale house. He 
said the cost would decrease if there was more tonnage, but it has remained static. He said the goal is to 
reduce waste through recycling, noting the fixed costs have to be covered. 

Chair lves asked if the composting will be done at a different facility. 

Mr. Shelton said the wastewater plant site being converted to compost facility, and the equipment 
will be more state of the art like what is used by Albuquerque. He said the com posting is not 
recommended for use in vegetable gardens. It is stable and they take animal wastes and paper bag full of 
leaves. 

Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency Joint Powers Board Meeting: August 15, 2013 Page4 



Chair lves asked the price on the com posting material. 

Mr. Nagawiecki said it is $25 for loose and $20 per ton. 

Commissioner Mayfield asked if they will take non-protein food scraps or all food scraps. 

Mr. Nagawiecki said they don't know yet. They want to get it going and see how successful that 
will be. He said they have to guarantee compost temperatures. 

Chair lves since they will do it at a former facility, it will be readily available. 

Mr. Nagawiecki said the wood chips are processed and taken over. He said they have grinding 
equipment at the eco-station and they have huge stockpiles. 

Chair lves said then the bottom line is that it is dollar driven at this point in time, but they have to 
look at transportation costs as well. 

Mr. Kippenbrock, said he, Mr. Shelton and Mr. Nagawiecki met, and they would like to partner with 
Santa Fe. 

Rio Arriba County and North Central Solid Waste Management 

Mr. Kippenbrock introduced Gino Romero, Director, North Central Solid Waste Management, 
and Tomas Campos, County Manager, Rio Arriba County. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said they process 30,000 tons per year. He said they have a contract similar to 
that at Los Alamos, and they piggyback off that. He said the cost is slightly higher since they have to haul 
from a farther distance. 

Mr. Romero said there are 60 residents from Santa Fe County that have service. The City of 
Espanola, part of which is in Santa Fe County, piggy-backs on the price from Los Alamos. He said they 
are in negotiations, and are looking at acquiring a landfill. He said the current contract with Waste 
Management runs through 2016. He said the issue is that it is not permitted for construction waste. He 
said they just a received permit for the transfer station. He said currently they use the BIA or transfer 
station. He said they use Santa Fe County for a big portion of dumping. He said the transfer station will 
come on line in 4-5 months. He said right now, most of the waste is going to Rio Rancho through North 
Central Solid Waste Management Authority. 

Mr. Romero said the percentage is 15% from Santa Fe County. 

Commissioner Chavez welcomed them to the meeting. He asked them to expand on recycling 
parameters. 

Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency Joint Powers Board Meeting: August 15,2013 Page5 



Mr. Romero said they are diverting and using air burn for green waste. The ashes are allowed for 
free, and some through MSW to Rio Rancho. He said their recycling rate is about 9%, commenting that 
hasn't been pushed because of the other issues they have to address right now. 

Commissioner Chavez said we need to incorporate them into our system as much as possible. He 
said this information is being incorporated into the current study being done. 

Commissioner Mayfield talked about the illegal dumping, noting about 15% of trash is illegal 
dumping. 

Mr. Romero said they don't have the exact numbers. He said they do know the boundary lines, 
but it falls under Espanola jurisdiction, noting a portion is in Santa Fe County, mostly along SR 76. He said 
illegal dumping is easy to find but it is hard to define where it is coming from. He said they are trying to 
rectify a lot of this by providing carts. 

Commissioner Mayfield asked, specifically along SR76, if there is curbside pickup and because of 
that, if people in that area are not throwing in arroyos. 

Mr. Romero said there is door to door pickup, including along SR76. He reiterated there has been 
illegal dumping for a long time, but it is difficult to determine the source, and they don't have the resources 
to really investigate the source. He said he doesn't have good numbers, commenting that they really don't 
have the jurisdiction. He said there are about 60 Santa Fe residents who have services who pay the 
monthly fee. 

Mr. Barela said there is no MOU, patrol and compliance officer, and they have had several 
complaints in the area. He said individuals dumping at various sites illegally. 

Commissioner Mayfield asked if there are regular weekly pickups, and if we need to work with 
North Central to get them as customers. 

Mr. Barela said he would be willing to work on this. 

Commissioner Mayfield asked about medical waste. 

Mr. Romero said they are not permitted to accept medical waste. 

Chair lves said you mentioned several times that there 60 SF County residents participating and 
making payments in your system. 

Mr. Romero said this is correct, noting Santa Fe County falls into Espanola, so they are covered by 
the City of Espanola. 

Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency Joint Powers Board Meeting: August 15, 2013 Page6 



Chair lves said you said the real figure was probably 320, so that leaves 260 residents that might 
not be paying appropriately for trash related pickup or might be causing the problem with "phantom waste 
disposal." 

Mr. Romero said they pick up on SR76 on Tuesday/Thursday, so it easy for the Santa Fe County 
residents to dispose of trash on those days, noting they are working to rectify the problems. 

Chair lves said about 15% of the waste stream of 30,000 tons per year would be 4,500 which is 
not an insignificant amount. He said Commissioner Mayfield is working cooperatively to make sure that 
you aren't over-burdened by residents in our jurisdiction. He hopes more can come from that. 

Chair lves said you spoke about your trucking arrangements and who is doing that at this point in 
time, noting Los Alamos is using Salazar Trucking. 

Mr. Romero said currently they have a contract with Salazar Trucking, but they have taken that 
internally to control costs. 

Mr. Kippenbrock asked how many miles do they pick up along SR76. 

Mr. Romero said they pick up all of SR76 up to Truchas, but the Santa Fe section is about 13 
miles. 

Commissioner Mayfield said there is mixed jurisdiction all along SR76- Rio Arriba County, Santa 
Fe County and City of Espanola. 

Mr. Romero said if you turn on the first road right of El Paragua you are in Santa Fe County. If you 
drive out of that a little way, you are in Rio Arriba County. He said most of the trash pickup along SR76 is 
for Rio Arriba, but a large position of it is in Santa Fe County. 

Chair lves asked the impact of the transfer station coming on line in 5 months. 

Mr. Romero said they look to promote recycling and slow illegal dumping, and to be much more 
efficient they are right now. 

Mr. Campos said with regard to pickup along SR76, said with regard to the 60 customers on that 
side of Chimayo that are participating, noting that doesn't count everyone along the road, and asked Mr. 
Romero that number. 

Mr. Romero said it is somewhere around 700. 

Mr. Campos said, with regard to the illegal dumping, he said people come from as far as way as 
Taos to do illegal dumping. He said once we get people used to curbside pickup, it is hard for them to go 
back because of the public outcry. 

Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency Joint Powers Board Meeting: August 15, 2013 Page? 



Commissioner Chavez said illegal dumping seems to be common practice, and no matter what we 
do to encourage recycling or curbside pickup, it still seems to be part of the equation for whatever reason. 
He doesn't know if it's something we have to accept, or if it something we can work to minimize. He 
doesn't think the practice will go away completely, commenting this is just his observation. 

Mr. Campos said he thinks it is phasing out as the public becomes more educated. He said 15 
years ago, everybody had a landfill where they were dumping their trash which was not monitored and not 
sanctioned. He said there is a Mexican population that has come into the United States which also is used 
to dumping wherever they feel like it, and they are dealing with that. He said if they stay here, and their 
children become more educated, he thinks it will improve. He said, he too, believes that the practice won't 
go away. 

Commissioner Holian thanked them for their presentation. She asked, for clarification, if Mr. 
Romero was saying that when they open the transfer station, will they be cutting back on their pickup 
service. 

Mr. Romero said no, but they will be promoting self-hauling, looking at the rural areas, promoting 
recycling, actually promoting the facility altogether. They are hoping to cut down on the illegal dumping 
and having a way for these people to get their trash disposed of correctly. 

Commissioner Holian asked the rates at the transfer station. 

Mr. Romero said they have a permit program, so the County residents currently get 8 punches, or 
1 cubic yard to dispose of yearly. He said they changed the process, but if they pay for the whole year at 
$188, which is discounted, they receive an 8 punch card. 

Mr. Campos said Rio Arriba County geographically is split by the Jicarilla Nation, and anything on 
the west side of the Nation from Dulce to Navajo Lake, is not part of the waste stream. He said there is a 
density of 3 people per mile which is pretty sparse. 

Commissioner Mayfield asked what they charge for their curbside pickup. 

Mr. Romero said it is $17.1 0 per month. 

Commissioner Mayfield asked if that is in addition to the transfer station permit. 

Mr. Romero said no, it is included. He said when people pay for the year at $188, people get an 8 
punch card, and they still provide the door-to-door pickup with free recycling. 

Responding to Commissioner Mayfield, Mr. Campos said Rio Arriba has mandated that every 
resident has to pay the $17.10 a month. He said what is confusing is that if they pay for a full year, they 
get a punch card which allows them 8 trips to the transfer station. 

Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency Joint Powers Board Meeting: August 15, 2013 PageS 



Chair lves asked Mr. Nagawiecki what is the cost in Los Alamos for curbside pickup. 

Mr. Nagawiecki said it is $18.15 per month. 

Commissioner Mayfield asked if that fee includes transfer station drop-off. 

Mr Nagawiecki said yes, they get 12 free loads per year with the $18.15 per month. 

Chair lves thanked Mr. Romero and Mr. Campos for attending the meeting today and sharing 
information with the Authority. He said we are looking to expand our landfill and looking at all of the 
relationships to see how we can do it better. 

San Miguel County 

Mr. Kippenbrock introduced Les Montoya, San Miguel County Manager, and Harold Garcia, 
Public Works Director, San Miguel County. 

Mr. Kippenbrock thanked Mr. Montoya and Mr. Garcia for coming today and sharing information 
with SWMA. 

Mr. Montoya thanked SWMA for working with them since 2009, and for providing the opportunity 
for an alternative disposal site, noting at times the regional landfill in Wagon Mount shuts down because of 
wind. He said if they shut down for too long, then waste piles up and they have to haul to Santa Fe. He 
said they hope in the future they can continue to work with Santa Fe. They are looking at minor changes 
in their solid waste system which will benefit all citizens. 

Mr. Montoya introduced Daniel Encinas of the San Miguel County Public Works Division, and 
Albert Giron who is with the City of Las Vegas, noting Mr. Giron is the interim manager of Solid Waste 
Systems, both of whom are here to answer any questions you might have. 

Mr. Montoya said San Miguel is about 4,700 sq. mi. He said they have 9-10 convenience centers, 
which are strategically placed in areas of County so residents can bring solid waste to us, noting 9 of the 
facilities are manned with an individual 5 days a week. He said they have compacter units and bulk 
containers as well. He said the biggest issue is transportation of the waste from these locations via 1-25 to 
Santa Fe or Wagon Mound. He said must of the waste is compacted at the site, and a lot is not 
compacted and transferred open top to the landfill. He said they want to purchase a grinder so they can 
grind the waste that comes in and break it down into a more manageable form, so they can load more into 
the open top containers and transport a larger amount at a single time. 

Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency Joint Powers Board Meeting: August 15, 2013 Page9 



Mr. Montoya said all waste transportation is all in house, and they don't contract with anyone to do 
hauling. He said they have a $1 million annual operation, noting about $750,000 of those costs are 
covered by user fees at $14.67 per month to residents in areas they serve. He said they decided the cost 
to provide services in some areas of Conchas was not beneficial, so they let a private contractor pick up 
those wastes to Tucumcari. 

Mr. Montoya said they have a solid waste ordinance which addresses costs and how wastes are 
handled outside the normal residential waste. He said they need to utilize the two landfills, noting it is 55 
miles to Wagon Mound and 40 miles to Pecos one-way to the Santa Fe landfill. They want to continue with 
that arrangement into the future. 

Commissioner Mayfield asked Mr. Montoya if they grind their solid waste and transport it to the 
landfill. 

Mr. Montoya said they are looking to do that. He said they looked at baling solid waste and then 
looked at a grinder, and found the grinder would be more effective than a baler, in terms of the volume of 
waste being transported at one time. He said they visited a waste exposition in Las Vegas, Nevada, and 
looked at two different grinders. He reiterated they believe the kinds of waste they have and the 
capabilities of the grinder would make their system more efficient than the way they're doing this now. 

Commissioner Mayfield asked Mr. Kippenbrock to comment about compounded ground waste, 
and asked if that would provide more capability in the cell to do this. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said he can't answer. However, he believes it would increase compaction 
because of smaller particles, but in terms of percentage he can't answer that question. 

Commissioner Mayfield would like a presentation on this possibility at a later date, and Mr. 
Kippenbrock said yes. 

Chair lves said it sounds s.imilar to what Los Alamos is doing which is baling which has greater 
compaction which takes less space. 

Mr. Montoya said there is less manpower involved in grinding material than in baling material, and 
reducing the personnel costs would be beneficial to them. He said the grinder will grind lots of kinds of 
materials - including concrete and metal. He said they have no intention of using it for the concrete or the 
metal. 

Mr. Garcia said a lot of construction waste is taken to the convenience centers, which can be 
taken to Las Vegas where they can grind that material, 

Commissioner Holian said then some County residents have pickup at $14.67 per month. 

Mr. Montoya said they don't pick up solid waste at the residences, and they come to the facility. 

Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency Joint Powers Board Meeting: August15, 2013 Page 10 



Commissioner Holian said then everybody uses the convenience centers. 

Mr. Montoya said yes, that's what they promote. 

Commissioner Holian said then everybody is charged $14.67 per month. 

Mr. Montoya said yes, for those residents that are in the areas where they set up the convenience 
centers. He said the residents in Conchas wouldn't be billed, because they don't provide any sort of 
service in that area. 

Commissioner Holian asked if they provide service to people who live in Glorieta, who are in Santa 
Fe County. 

Mr. Montoya said yes, they use the Pecos convenience center, and they are charged $14.67 or, if 
they show up with bulky items, they may be billed directly for bulk bale which would come from the baling 
operation. 

Responding to Commissioner Holian, Mr. Montoya said the billing is based on cubic yards, noting 
they have no scales at any of the site. 

Mr. Kippenbrock asked how many days they struggle with the landfill closure at Wagon Mound. 

Mr. Garcia said it averages about 2-3 days to a month. However, the City of Las Vegas partners 
with them and they help with them with overnight storage and with transportation. 

Chair lves asked the amount of waste stream which goes from San Miguel County to Wagon 
Mound. 

Mr. Garcia said it is about 6,400 tons annually. 

Mr. Garcia said the waste stream does not include the City of Las Vegas. He said the City of Las 
Vegas sometimes has a bigger problem, noting the have been having to haul waste either to Moriarty or 
Tucumcari, which is a bigger inconvenience to them. He said they create twice the tonnage of San Miguel 
County. 

Commissioner Mayfield asked the percentage of recycling. 

Mr. Garcia said they received a grant and they implemented a program 6-8 months ago, so right 
now the numbers are minimal because they are new to this effort, so they have no numbers to present. He 
noted Las Vegas has been recycling for 4-5 years. 

Commissioner Holian asked where they are taking their recycling. 

Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency Joint Powers Board Meeting: August 15, 2013 Page 11 



Alvin Giron said they are selling their recyclables to different companies in Albuquerque or Waste 
Management. He said the recycling is picked up by people purchasing it. 

Commissioner Mayfield asked if residents are allowed to deposit recycling free of charge. 

Mr. Garcia said the recycling program is free in Las Vegas. He said there is no charge at the 
convenience centers. He said Las Vegas changed its rate schedule 3 years ago to consider recycling in 
the basic rate structure. 

Commissioner Mayfield said people are depositing recyclables at the convenience centers, and 
asked where it goes from there. 

Mr. Garcia said they have containers that go on their roll-up truck, and people dispose of it in those 
containers. Then they pick up those containers at the site and bring the recyclables to the City of Las 
Vegas. 

Chair lves thanked them for coming today and sharing information and they look forward to 
continuing to work with them. 

Mr. Kippenbrock noted there is a representative from MCT in attendance and invited him to come 
forward. 

The MCT representative declined. 

Wrap-Up 

Chair lves said the recommendation is to hold off taking any action until the solid waste 
assessment study was done, and asked if this is the general consensus of the members. 

Commissioner Holian said this is her preference. 

Commissioner Chavez concurred, commenting he would like to respect staff recommendations in 
this regard. He said the information today will add another layer, and we need time to process that before 
we make a clear decision. He looks forward to the staffs' recommendation. 

Commissioner Chavez said he has to leave, but he can meet with staff. 

Commissioner Chavez deparled the meeting. 

Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency Joint Powers Board Meeting: August 15, 2013 Page 12 



Commissioner Mayfield said he would like information on tipping fees regionally. He said he thinks 
it's wise to partner with local communities to reduce costs. 

Commissioner Mayfield wants to hear more about grinding solid waste going to the landfill, and 
more discussion on recycling in terms of extending the life cycle of the landfill. 

Commissioner Mayfield said we now have a longer life cycle at Caja del Rio than what we had 10 
years ago. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said, "Since the Great Recession, yes." 

Commissioner Mayfield said two weeks ago, this Board voted to allow other streams of waste to 
come in, and it is reflected in the minutes, and that will -change the projected life cycle at Caja del Rio as 
well. He reiterated we need to work cooperatively, and he would like to look at new technology to extend 
the life of our landfill. He thanked everyone who attended today, and said he is glad this discussion has 
begun. 

Chair lves said he will work to get the requested information to the members of the Authority. 

It was the consensus among the membership that no action will be taken on this item today. 

(B) DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE ACTION ON ADDITIONAL SPECIAL WASTE 
CATEGORIES AS PART OF THE CAJA DEL RIO LANDFILL PERMIT RENEWAL AND 
MODIFICATION 

A copy of Types of Solid Waste Permitted and Recommended for the Caja del Rio Landfill, is 
incorporated herewith to these minutes as Exhibit "2." 

Randall Kippenbrock, Executive Director, presented information regarding this matter from his 
Memorandum dated August 13, 2013, with attachments, to the SFSWMA Joint Powers Board, which is 
incorporated herewith to these minutes as Exhibit "3." Please see Exhibits "2" and "3" for specifics of this 
presentation. 

Commissioner Holian asked if the reason we are considering accepting additional special waste 
categories is for the convenience of the community or if it is for income, noting she didn't attend the 
previous meeting of the Board. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said it is for convenience. He said historically they have receive requests that 
would fall under the industrial solid waste category or the spill category. He said it is not from an income 
perspective all. 

Commissioner Holian asked for an example of TFCH- what material would be under that 
category. 

Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency Joint Powers Board Meeting: August 15, 2013 Page 13 



Mr. Kippenbrock said this is a gray area, noting TFCH would be very similar to a spill category. He 
said the one that comes to mind are flat roof roofing materials, which have two compounds they mix 
together. He said if there was a spill, it would have to be neutralized to a non-hazardous condition, 
otherwise it would have to be transported to another facility. He said TFCH could be a business that takes 
the hazardous waste, neutralizes it, and then disposes of it at a landfill. He said this is something we 
probably never will see. He said there are 61andfills permitted to take it, however it isn't being reported 
unless it is under the category of "Other Special Waste," which isn't separated out. 

Commissioner Mayfield said then other landfills do accept the TFCH, that Mr. Kippenbrock is 
recommending for acceptance, throughout the region and/or the State. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said yes, noting it is on page 4 of the Memorandum. 

Commissioner Mayfield said if individuals wanted to do it they would just have to pay the 
transportation costs, and asked if it is just convenient for them. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said yes, it is for convenience. 

Commissioner Mayfield said Mr. Kippenbrock has gone through this in prior meetings, and asked if 
there are any issues with the water table underneath the landfill, potential leakage or leaching. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said, "No." 

Commissioner Mayfield asked if different monitoring has to happen in this regard. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said the only additional requirement is that we have separate disposal 
management plans, which have to be manifest and recorded. He said there is additional paperwork, but in 
terms of these particular kinds of waste, there are no additional requirements in place when we do place it 
for disposal. 

Commissioner Mayfield asked if this goes into a different area within the landfill, or just into the 
general area. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said it goes into the same area as all other landfill trash. 

Commissioner Mayfield asked if we could have a separate cell just for this type of material so we 
could have a different monitoring of it. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said the thing about special waste is that is more about special handling, and not 
so much about the environmental concerns. 

Commissioner Mayfield said he has concerns and if we had a special place for it, we could have 
special training, different certifications for staff. 

Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency Joint Powers Board Meeting: August 15,2013 Page 14 



Mr. Kippenbrock said the disposal management plan does outline the training requirements, 
disposal requirements as well as the record-keeping requirements for each one. 

Commissioner Mayfield asked if there would be a recommendation to let this go with our regular 
MSW commercial waste and not have a special smaller cell just for this type of waste. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said, from an operational standpoint, he would like to keep it in one working area. 
He said we currently accept water treatment plant sludge, about 1100 tons, which is placed with the 
regular trash at the landfill, and that also is a special waste. 

Responding to Commissioner Mayfield, Mr. Kippenbrock said the best example of TFCH would be 
unspent material that needs to be neutralized to a non-hazardous standard- a 55 gallon drum of acetone. 

Commissioner Mayfield asked how we want to handle and monitor it. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said it would have to be solidified and neutralized to a non hazardous material. 

Commissioner Mayfield said then it is already non-hazardous before we accept it. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said this is correct, noting the generator of the waste is responsible for ensuring 
that when we do accept it, that it meets all the requirements. They have to fill out a waste profile before we 
can accept it. He said, "Keep in mind, that is a case-by-case, and if it is something that we're not 
comfortable with, we do not have to accept it." 

Chair lves noted in the next item on the agenda, on page 14 of that portion of the packet, there is 
a listing of all the various monitoring that is done annually. Which includes methane, various groundwater 
issues, leachates, and presumably, this is coming in as treated waste and goes into the regular stream. 
He asked if there were any problems with it that would picked up by the monitoring activities. 

Ms. Kippenbrock said this is correct. 

Commissioner Mayfield asked if we accept mercury. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said that would be considered a hazardous waste. 

Commissioner Mayfield asked if there would be different certification for staff to handle this. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said there is no additional certification, but it is considered in-house training. 

Commissioner Mayfield asked if there is a line item in the budget for this. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said there is no budget for this particular one, and it will be incorporated into the 
overall training that we have with our staff. 

Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency Joint Powers Board Meeting: August 15, 2013 Page 15 



Commissioner Mayfield asked if there will be a special fee for these kinds of materials coming into 
the landfill, or will it be the standard tipping fee rate. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said the only higher activity fee we have at this time is for petroleum 
contaminated soil, that is not treated for disposal. He said he hasn't considered different fees at this time. 
He said his assumption is if the waste already is treated and meets standards and goals immediately, then 
the tipping fee will remain the same. 

Chair lves said it is good to build in flexibility because you don't know what the future holds. He 
said there are various markets for these special wastes, although the NMED doesn't tell us where it is 
being transported from. It could become complementary to our waste stream and would serve our 
communities if they need to dispose these kinds of wastes. 

MOTION: Councilor Dimas moved, seconded by Commissioner Holian, to approve this request, with the 
clarification that it is only for the industrial solid waste, spilled substances and TFCH, as recommended by 
staff. 

DISCUSSION: Councilor Rivera asked when the monitoring system would pick up something that isn't 
clean. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said the monitoring system is site specific for the 3 types of monitoring we have. The 
groundwater monitoring that you detect in groundwater contamination, the depth of the lowest point of the 
waste is approximately 70 feet below grade. The depth to the top of the groundwater table is 
approximately 325 feet, so there is a separation there. There is also the monitoring for landfill gas and 
other parameters, but most importantly, because we have the Caja del Rio landfill to meet Subtitle D 
regulations, we have liners in place, which is a thick plastic which is laid down on the floor and the side 
slope. The floor and the side slope are designed for all these liquids, we call leachate, to come to a low 
point. 

Councilor Rivera asked, if somebody brought in a hazardous material that has not been neutralized yet, 
when would that get caught - when would we identify that. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said, "If someone brought in a regulated hazardous material, that would be contained in 
the liner system that we have in place. For the record, I would like to let all the Board members know that 
approximately 4% of residential waste is considered hazardous waste, but it is exempt from the rules 
regulating hazardous waste." 

Councilor Rivera said, "If we have a hazardous material that has not been cleaned up that, and they dump 
it into the regular stream, and it had some kind of toxic effect that would affect breathing and our 
employees are out there, it wouldn't get caught. It would be contained in the liner, I understand what 
you're saying, but it wouldn't get caught in any way until employees started having problems." 

Chair lves said, on that point, to some degree we rely on the people bringing waste to the landfill not to be 
dumping inappropriate materials. He said we do some visual inspection of those materials, presumably the 

Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency Joint Powers Board Meeting: August 15, 2013 Page 16 



special waste categories have been detoxified, and there may be a greater safety factor in those wastes 
than in the wastes which haven't been treated, noting penalties and awareness of people bringing the non
special wastes that have been treated is much less than those who have actually had to treat that waste. 

Councilor Rivera asked, "And when would that get identified, if they weren't treated properly." 

Chair lves said he doesn't think we test when things are coming in, and never have to his knowledge, 
whether a particular waste stream contains toxic materials. He said people regularly throw away batteries 
and miscellaneous small items like that which the system isn't designed to pull out. He said in terms of 
testing, it's a question of the chemical processes. He said some will be dependent on moisture and a host 
of things, commenting he is unsure it is possible to calculate that with any accuracy. 

Commissioner Holian said, "It seems to me that these waste particular waste streams would actually be 
regulated and overseen by NMED. Is that correct. Would people that dump those sorts of waste streams 
have to be overseen by NMED." 

Mr. Kippenbrock said, "Yes, that would be the case. However, keep in mind that the generators are 
responsible for disposing of their waste. You conceivably could have a generator that is not aware of the 
special requirements. I would not put it past ... that these same generators might not be fully aware that 
they should obtain a special waste permit prior to coming to our landfill. I'm just playing devil's advocate 
on this." 

Commissioner Holian said, "But they would have to get a special permit to be able dump at Caja del Rio, 
right." 

Mr. Kippenbrock said, "To my knowledge, yes. The two that I know of. For example, like sludge. Staff has 
to have a disposal management plan and they do an analysis ahead of time, and most of these three we're 
requesting, would need to be tested prior before we can give them permission to come to our facility. They 
would need to be manifest." 

Commissioner Holian said then they would get the permit from NMED. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said they generally work with the generators. He said for example, if ABC company had 
some spill, we would work closely with them to identify what task needs to be done, and the minimum 
testing to be done, and once we see it doesn't exceed the limit for hazardous waste, and it needs to be in a 
solidified form as well. He said we do get calls, and once we learn what we think may be the content, then 
we make a decision that we can't accept them and give them other possible landfills to talk with. 

Commissioner Holian said then we have some control over whether or not to accept these kinds of wastes, 
if we feel confident that the waste was or was not properly treated. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said yes. He said even though we are permitted for petroleum contaminated soil, we 
have turned those away because we felt we couldn't handle those in a manner we feel is best for our 
landfill. 

Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency Joint Powers Board Meeting: August 15, 2013 Page 17 



VOTE: The motion was approved on a voice vote, with Commissioner Holian, Commissioner Mayfield, 
Councilor Dimas and Councilor Rivera voting in favor of the motion, no one voting against and 
Commissioner Chavez absent for the vote. 

(C) REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BLUEWATER ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, LLC, 
OF SANTA FE, NM FOR ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES FOR THE CAJA DEL RIO 
LANDFILL AND BUCKMAN ROAD RECYCLING AND TRANSFER STATION IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $46,996.65 (RFP NO. 12/27/P). 

Randall Kippenbrock, Executive Director, presented information regarding this matter from his 
Memorandum dated August 8, 2013, with attachments, to the SFSWMA Joint Powers Board, is 
incorporated herewith to these minutes as Exhibit "4." Please see Exhibit "4" for specifics of this 
presentation. 

MOTION: Commissioner Mayfield moved, seconded by Commissioner Holian, to approve this request. 

DISCUSSION: Councilor lves asked if the $1.50 per mile and vehicles at $50 per day is standard for these 
kinds of activities, noting this is higher than most people are paying for mileage. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said these are standard numbers, noting that since Bluewater Environmental is in Santa, 
they may not be using those expenses, but it is just part of the fee schedule he has for all clients. 

Chair lves noted they charge $40 for secretaries. 

VOTE: The motion was approved unanimously on a voice vote. 

VII. MATTERS FROM STAFF 

Mr. Kippenbrock welcomed Dan ita Bettner, the new BuRRT site manager, noting she has 10 years 
experience in consulting, and has a Bachelor's and Master's from New Mexico State University in Civil and 
Environmental Engineering. Her last 10 years has been in the solid waste industry. 

Commissioner Holian asked if BuRRT has a reuse area. 

Ms. Bettner asked if she is speaking of a repurpose and recycling, and Commissioner Holian said 
yes. Ms. Bettner said no they do not. 

Chair lves welcomed Ms. Bettner on behalf of the Board and said we look forward to working with 
her for a smooth operation at the BuRRT. 

Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency Joint Powers Board Meeting: August 15, 2013 Page 18 



VIII. MATTERS FROM THE BOARD 

Councilor Rivera noted that he received an email that State Representative Stephen Easley just 
passed away, and extended condolences to his family. 

Chair lves spoke of his friendship with Representative Easley, and also extended condolences, 
saying the last time he saw him he seemed to be on the mend. 

Mr. Kippenbrock said on Thursday, August 22, 2013, he, Commissioner Holian and Councilor 
Rivera will be meeting downtown at City Hall at 8:30a.m., to go on a tour of the recycling plant in 
Albuquerque. He said the tour will be 1 to 1% hours, with an on-site lunch provided. He said they should 
be back to Santa Fe between 1 :00 and 1 :30 p.m. He asked other members of the Board to let him know if 
they would like to join them for the tour. 

Councilor Rivera thanked Lisa Merrill for making these arrangements. 

IX. NEXT MEETING DATE- Thursday, September 19, 2013 

Chair lves noted at the next meeting we will be discussing the submission of the renewal permit, 
noting it takes about 18 months to get the permit through the process, and urged all members to attend. 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

There was no further business to come before the Board and the meeting was adjourned at 2:11 
p.m. 

ATTESTED TO: 

Yolanda Y. Vigil, City Clerk . . 
,n •• 

' . 

APPROVED BY: 

Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency Joint Powers Boafd Meeti~g: August 15, 2013 



SUBMITTED BY: 

elessia Helberg, Board Stenographer 

Santa Fe Solid Waste Management Agency Joint Powers Board Meeting: August 15, 2013 Page 20 


